



SPONSOR: Rep. B. Short & Sen. Bushweller
Reps. Barbieri, Heffernan, Keeley, Osienski, Scott; Sen.
Ennis

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
147th GENERAL ASSEMBLY

HOUSE BILL NO. 162

AN ACT TO AMEND TITLE 18 OF THE DELAWARE CODE RELATING TO HEALTH INSURANCE
CONTRACTS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE:

1 Section 1. Amend Section 3303, Title 18 of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining and
2 deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

3 § 3303. Scope, format of policy.

4 No policy of health insurance shall be delivered or issued for delivery to any person in this State unless it
5 otherwise complies with this title and complies with the following:

6 (1) The entire money and other considerations therefor shall be expressed therein;

7 (2) The time when the insurance takes effect and terminates shall be expressed therein;

8 (3) It shall purport to insure only 1 person, except that a policy may insure, originally or by subsequent
9 amendment, upon the application of an adult member of a family, who shall be deemed the policyholder, any 2 or more
10 eligible members of that family, including husband, wife, dependent children or any children under a specified age which
11 shall not exceed ~~19~~ 26 years and any other person dependent upon the policyholder;

12 (4) The style, arrangement and overall appearance of the policy shall give no undue prominence to any portion of
13 the text, and every printed portion of the text of the policy and of any endorsements or attached papers shall be plainly
14 printed in light-faced type of a style in general use, the size of which shall be uniform and not less than 10 point with a
15 lower case unspaced alphabet length not less than 120 point (the "text" shall include all printed matter except the name and
16 address of the insurer, name or title of the policy, the brief description, if any, and captions and subcaptions);

17 (5) The exceptions and reductions of indemnity shall be set forth in the policy and, other than those contained in
18 §§ 3305-3326, inclusive, of this title, shall be printed, at the insurer's option, either included with the benefit provision to
19 which they apply, or under an appropriate caption such as "exceptions," or "exceptions and reductions," except that if an
20 exception or reduction specifically applies only to a particular benefit of the policy, a statement of such exception or
21 reduction shall be included with the benefit provision to which it applies;

22 (6) Each such form, including riders and endorsements, shall be identified by a form number in the lower left-hand
23 corner of the first page thereof; and

24 (7) The policy shall contain no provision purporting to make any portion of the charter, rules, constitution or
25 bylaws of the insurer a part of the policy unless such portion is set forth in full in the policy, except in the case of the
26 incorporation of, or reference to, a statement of rates or classifications of risks, or short-rate table filed with the
27 Commissioner.

28 (8) The policy shall contain no provision or nondisclosure clause prohibiting physicians or other health care
29 providers from giving patients information regarding diagnoses, prognoses and treatment options.

30 Section 2. Amend Section 3354(a)(3), Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by
31 underlining and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

32 § 3354. Supplemental coverage for children of insureds.

33 (a) Definitions. -- As used in this section:

34 (3) "Dependent" means a covered person's child by blood or by law who is less than 26 years of age.:

35 a. ~~Is less than 26 years of age;~~

36 b. ~~Is unmarried;~~

37 c. ~~Is a resident of Delaware or is enrolled as a full-time student at an accredited public or private~~
38 ~~institution of higher education; and~~

39 d. ~~If not actually provided coverage as a named subscriber, insured, enrollee or covered person~~
40 ~~under any other group or individual health benefits plan, group health plan, or church plan, or entitled to benefits under 42~~
41 ~~U.S.C. § 1395 et seq.~~

42 Section 3. Amend Section 3354(d), Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining
43 and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

44 §3354. Supplemental coverage for children of insureds.

45 (d) A dependent covered by a covered person's contract, where coverage under the contract's language would
46 terminate at a specific age before the dependent's ~~twenty-fourth~~ twenty-sixth birthday, may make a written election for
47 coverage as a dependent pursuant to this section, until the dependent's ~~twenty-fourth~~ twenty-sixth birthday. The election
48 must be made:

49 (1) Within 30 days prior to the termination of coverage at the specific age provided in the contract's language;

50 (2) Within 30 days after meeting the requirements for dependent status as set forth in subsection (a) of this section,
51 when coverage for the dependent under the contract's language had previously terminated; or

52 (3) During an open enrollment period, as provided pursuant to the contract, if the dependent meets the
53 requirements for dependent status as set forth in subsection (a) of this section during the open enrollment period.

54 Coverage for a dependent who makes a written election for coverage may not be conditioned upon or discriminate on
55 the basis of lack of evidence of insurability.

56 Section 4. Amend Chapter 33, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining as
57 follows:

58 § 3367. No lifetime or annual limits.

59 (a)(1) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, a health insurance issuer offering group or individual
60 health insurance coverage may not establish any lifetime limit on the dollar amount of benefits for any individual.

61 (2)(i) Except as provided in paragraphs (a)(2)(ii), (b) and (d) of this section, a health insurance issuer offering
62 group or individual health insurance coverage may not establish any annual limit on the dollar amount of benefits for any
63 individual.

64 (ii) A health flexible spending arrangement (as defined in section 106(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue
65 Code) is not subject to the requirement in paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section.

66 (b)(1) The rules of this section do not prevent a health insurance issuer offering group or individual health
67 insurance coverage from placing annual or lifetime dollar limits with respect to any individual on specific covered benefits
68 that are not essential health benefits to the extent that such limits are otherwise permitted under applicable Federal or State
69 law.

70 (2) The rules of this section do not prevent a health insurance issuer offering group or individual health
71 insurance coverage from excluding all benefits for a condition. However, if any benefits are provided for a condition, then
72 the requirements of this section apply. Other requirements of Federal or State law may require coverage of certain benefits.

73 (c) The term “essential health benefits” as used in this section means essential health benefits under Section
74 1302(b) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, Delaware law and applicable federal and State regulations.

75 (d)(1) With respect to policy years beginning prior to January 1, 2014, a health insurance issuer offering group or
76 individual health insurance coverage may establish, for any individual, an annual limit on the dollar amount of benefits that
77 are essential health benefits, provided the limit is no less than the following amounts:

78 (i) For a policy year beginning on or after September 23, 2010, but before September 23, 2011,
79 \$750,000.

80 (ii) For a policy year beginning on or after September 23, 2011, but before September 23, 2012,
81 \$1,250,000.

82 (iii) For policy years beginning on or after September 23, 2012 but before January 1, 2014, \$2,000,000.

83 (2) In determining whether an individual has received benefits that meet or exceed the applicable amount
84 described in paragraph (d)(1) of this section, an issuer must take into account only essential health benefits.

85 Section 5. Amend Section 3517, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining
86 and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

87 § 3517. Preexisting conditions; limits.

88 (a) A group health insurance policy shall not include a provision that excludes coverage, and a health insurer shall
89 not deny a claim under the policy, as a result of ~~contain a provision specifying the additional exclusions or limitations, if~~
90 ~~any, applicable under the policy with respect to a disease or physical condition of a person, not otherwise excluded from the~~
91 ~~person's coverage by name or specified description~~ effective on the date of the person's loss, which existed prior to the
92 effective date of the person's coverage under the policy. ~~Any such exclusion or limitation may only apply to a disease or~~
93 ~~physical condition for which medical advice or treatment was received by the person during the 12 months prior to the~~
94 ~~effective date of the person's coverage. In no event shall such exclusion or limitation apply to loss incurred or disability~~
95 ~~commencing after the earlier of (1) the end of a continuous period of 12 months commencing on or after the effective date~~
96 ~~of the person's coverage during all of which the person has received no medical advice or treatment in connection with~~
97 ~~such disease or physical condition; and (2) the end of the 2-year period commencing on the effective date of the person's~~
98 ~~coverage. This subsection shall not apply to accident only; credit; dental; vision; Medicare supplement; benefits for long-~~
99 ~~term care, home health care, community-based care or any combination thereof; disability income insurance; liability~~
100 ~~insurance including general liability insurance and automobile liability insurance; coverage for on-site medical clinics;~~
101 ~~coverage issued as a supplement to liability insurance, worker's compensation or similar insurance; or automobile medical~~
102 ~~payment insurance.~~

103 (b) For those policies not subject to subsection (a), a group health insurance policy shall contain a provision
104 specifying the additional exclusion or limitations, if any, applicable under the policy with respect to a disease or physical
105 condition of a person, not otherwise excluded from the person's coverage by name or specific description effective on the
106 date of the person's loss, which existed prior to the effective date of the person's coverage under the policy. Any such
107 exclusion or limitation may only apply to a disease or physical condition for which medical advice or treatment was
108 received by the person during the 12 months prior to the effective date of the person's coverage. In no event shall such
109 exclusion or limitation apply to loss incurred or disability commencing after the earlier of (1) the end of a continuous period
110 of 12 months commencing on or after the effective date of the person's coverage during all of which the person has

111 received no medical advice or treatment in connection with such disease or physical condition; and (2) the end of the 2-year
112 period commencing on the effective date of the person's coverage.

113 ~~(b)~~(c) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b) of this section, a group health insurance policy issued by a health
114 insurer, health service corporation or health maintenance organization shall contain a provision which extends coverage for
115 an insured who is hospitalized on the date coverage terminates for a period of 10 consecutive days during a single period of
116 continuous hospitalization, if coverage terminations for any reason except nonpayment of premium. Benefits shall continue
117 at the same level as provided in the terminated policy for the 10-day period.

118 ~~(e)~~(d) Following the termination of the 10-day period set forth in subsection ~~(b)~~ (c) of this section, the succeeding
119 insurer, if any, shall provide benefits for an insured who is hospitalized on the effective date of coverage at the level
120 provided in the policy then in force, notwithstanding any preexisting conditions or other similar exclusions contained in the
121 new policy. This provision applies only to a continuing single period of hospitalization.

122 Section 6. Amend Section 3570(a)(3), Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by
123 underlining and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

124 § 3570. Supplemental coverage for children of insureds.

125 (a) Definitions. -- As used in this section:

126 (3) "Dependent" means a covered person's child by blood or by law who is less than 26 years of age;

127 a. ~~Is less than 26 years of age;~~

128 b. ~~Is unmarried;~~

129 c. ~~Is a resident of Delaware or is enrolled as a full-time student at an accredited public or private~~
130 ~~institution of higher education; and~~

131 d. ~~If not actually provided coverage as a named subscriber, insured, enrollee or covered person~~
132 ~~under any other group or individual health benefits plan, group health plan, or church plan, or entitled to benefits under 42~~
133 ~~U.S.C. § 1395 et seq.~~

134 Section 7. Amend Section 3570(d), Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining
135 and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

136 §3570. Supplemental coverage for children of insureds.

137 (d) A dependent covered by a covered person's contract, where coverage under the contract's language would
138 terminate at a specific age before the dependent's ~~twenty-fourth~~ twenty-sixth birthday, may make a written election for
139 coverage as a dependent pursuant to this section, until the dependent's ~~twenty-fourth~~ twenty-sixth birthday. The election
140 must be made:

141 (1) Within 30 days prior to the termination of coverage at the specific age provided in the contract's
142 language;

143 (2) Within 30 days after meeting the requirements for dependent status as set forth in subsection (a) of
144 this section, when coverage for the dependent under the contract's language had previously terminated; or

145 (3) During an open enrollment period, as provided pursuant to the contract, if the dependent meets the
146 requirements for dependent status as set forth in subsection (a) of this section during the open enrollment period.

147 Coverage for a dependent who makes a written election for coverage may not be conditioned upon or discriminate
148 on the basis of lack of evidence of insurability.

149 Section 8. Amend Chapter 35, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining as
150 follows:

151 § 3571H. No lifetime or annual limits.

152 (a)(1) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this section, a group health plan, or a health insurance issuer offering
153 group or individual health insurance coverage, may not establish any lifetime limit on the dollar amount of benefits for any
154 individual.

155 (2)(i) Except as provided in paragraphs (a)(2)(ii), (b) and (d) of this section, a group health plan, or a health
156 insurance issuer offering group or individual health insurance coverage, may not establish any annual limit on the dollar
157 amount of benefits for any individual.

158 (ii) A health flexible spending arrangement (as defined in section 106(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue
159 Code) is not subject to the requirement in paragraph (a)(2)(i) of this section.

160 (b)(1) The rules of this section do not prevent a group health plan, or a health insurance issuer offering group or
161 individual health insurance coverage, from placing annual or lifetime dollar limits with respect to any individual on specific
162 covered benefits that are not essential health benefits to the extent that such limits are otherwise permitted under applicable
163 Federal or State law.

164 (2) The rules of this section do not prevent a group health plan, or a health insurance issuer offering group or
165 individual health insurance coverage, from excluding all benefits for a condition. However, if any benefits are provided for
166 a condition, then the requirements of this section apply. Other requirements of Federal or State law may require coverage
167 of certain benefits.

168 (c) The term "essential health benefits" as used in this section means essential health benefits under Section
169 1302(b) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, Delaware law and applicable federal and State regulations.

170 (d)(1) With respect to plan years beginning prior to January 1, 2014, a group health plan, or a health insurance
171 issuer offering group or individual health insurance coverage, may establish, for any individual, an annual limit on the
172 dollar amount of benefits that are essential health benefits, provided the limit is no less than the following amounts:

173 (i) For a plan year beginning on or after September 23, 2010, but before September 23, 2011, \$750,000.

174 (ii) For a plan year beginning on or after September 23, 2011, but before September 23, 2012,
175 \$1,250,000.

176 (iii) For plan years beginning on or after September 23, 2012 but before January 1, 2014, \$2,000,000.

177 (2) In determining whether an individual has received benefits that meet or exceed the applicable amount
178 described in paragraph (d)(1) of this section, a plan or issuer must take into account only essential health benefits.

179 § 3571I. Guaranteed availability of coverage.

180 (a) Guaranteed availability of coverage in the group market. Subject to paragraphs (b) through (d) of this section,
181 a health insurer that offers health insurance coverage in the group market in this State must offer to any employer in this
182 State all products that are approved for sale in the group market, and must accept any employer that applies for any of those
183 products.

184 (b) Enrollment periods. A health insurer may restrict enrollment in health insurance coverage to open or special
185 enrollment periods.

186 (1) Open enrollment periods in the group market. A health insurer in the group market must permit an
187 employer to purchase health insurance coverage for a group health plan at any point during the year. In the case of health
188 insurance coverage offered in the small group market, a health insurer may decline to offer coverage to a plan sponsor that
189 is unable to comply with a material plan provision relating to employer contribution or group participation rules, as defined
190 in 45 CFR § 147.106(b)(3), pursuant to applicable State law and, in the case of a qualified health plan offered in the Small
191 Business Health Options Program (SHOP), as permitted by 45 CFR §156.285(c). With respect to coverage in the small
192 group market, and in the large group market if such coverage is offered in a SHOP in this State, coverage shall become
193 effective consistent with the dates described in 45 CFR § 155.725(h).

194 (2) Special enrollment periods. A health insurer in the group market shall establish special enrollment
195 periods for qualifying events as defined under section 603 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
196 amended. Enrollees shall be provided 30 calendar days after the date of the qualifying event to elect coverage, with such
197 coverage becoming effective consistent with the dates described in 45 CFR §155.420(b). These special enrollment periods
198 are in addition to any other special enrollment periods that are required under federal and state law.

199 (c) Special rules for network plans. (1) In the case of a health insurer that offers health insurance coverage in the
200 group market through a network plan, the health insurer may do the following:

201 (i) Limit the employers that may apply for the coverage to those with eligible individuals in the group market
202 who live, work or reside in the service area for the network plan.

203 (ii) Within the service area of the plan, deny coverage to employers if the carrier has demonstrated to the
204 Commissioner the following:

205 (A) It will not have the capacity to deliver services adequately to enrollees of any additional groups
206 because of its obligations to existing group contract holders and enrollees.

207 (B) It is applying paragraph (c)(1) of this section uniformly to all employers without regard to the claims
208 experience of those employers and their employees (and their dependents) or any health-status related factor relating to
209 such employees and dependents.

210 (2) A health insurer that denies health insurance coverage to an employer in any service area, in accordance with
211 paragraph (c)(1)(ii) of this section, may not offer coverage in the group market within the service area to any employer for a
212 period of 180 calendar days after the date the coverage is denied. This paragraph (c)(2) does not limit the health insurer's
213 ability to renew coverage already in force or relieve the carrier of the responsibility to renew that coverage.

214 (3) Coverage offered within a service area after the 180-day period specified in paragraph (c)(2) of this section is
215 subject to the requirements of this section.

216 (d) Application of financial capacity limits. (1) A health insurer may deny health insurance coverage in the group
217 market if the health insurer has demonstrated to the Commissioner the following:

218 (i) It does not have the financial reserves necessary to underwrite additional coverage.

219 (ii) It is applying this paragraph (d)(1) uniformly to all employers in the group market in this State consistent
220 with applicable State law and without regard to the claims experience of those employers and their employees (and their
221 dependents) or any health status-related factor relating to such employees and dependents.

222 (2) A health insurer that denies health insurance coverage to any employer in this State under paragraph (d)(1) of
223 this section may not offer coverage in the group market in this State before the later of either of the following dates:

224 (i) The 181st day after the date the health insurer denies coverage

225 (ii) The date the health insurer demonstrates to the Commissioner that the carrier has sufficient reserves to
226 underwrite additional coverage.

227 (3) Paragraph (d)(2) of this section does not limit the carrier's ability to renew coverage already in force or relieve
228 the carrier of the responsibility to renew that coverage.

229 (4) Coverage offered after the 180-day period specified in paragraph (d)(2) of this section is subject to the
230 requirements of this section.

231 (5) The Commissioner may provide for the application of this paragraph (d) on service-area-specific basis.

232 (e) Marketing. A health insurer and its officials, employees, agents and representatives must comply with any
233 applicable State laws and regulations regarding marketing by health insurers and cannot employ marketing practices or
234 benefit designs that will have the effect of discouraging the enrollment of individuals with significant health needs in health
235 insurance coverage.

236 (f) Grandfathered health plans. This section does not apply to grandfathered health plans. For purposes of this
237 section, “grandfathered health plans” means plans provided by a health insurer in which an individual was enrolled on
238 March 23, 2010, for as long as it maintains that status in accordance with federal regulations.

239 § 3571J. Prohibition on Excessive Waiting Periods. A group health plan and a health insurer offering group
240 health insurance coverage shall not apply any waiting period that exceeds 90 days. As used in this section, “waiting
241 period” means the period that must pass before coverage for an employee or dependent who is otherwise eligible to enroll
242 under the terms of a group health plan can become effective.

243 § 3571K. Non-discrimination in health care.

244 (a) Providers. A group health plan and a health insurer offering group health insurance coverage shall not
245 discriminate with respect to participation under the plan or coverage against any health care provider who is acting within
246 the scope of that provider’s license or certification under applicable State law. This section shall not require that a group
247 health plan or health insurer contract with any health care provider willing to abide by the terms and conditions for
248 participation established by the plan or insurer. Nothing in this section shall be construed as preventing a group health plan,
249 a health insurer or the Commissioner from establishing varying reimbursement rates based on quality or performance
250 measures.

251 (b) Individuals. The provisions of section 1558 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (relating to
252 non-discrimination) shall apply with respect to a group health plan or health insurer offering group health insurance
253 coverage.

254 § 3571L. Comprehensive health insurance coverage.

255 (a) Coverage for essential health benefits package. A health insurer that offers health insurance coverage in the
256 small group market shall ensure that such coverage includes the essential health benefits package in conformity with
257 Section 1302 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and State law. The Commissioner shall issue a regulation
258 setting forth what constitutes “essential health benefits” for purposes of this section.

259 (b) Cost-sharing under group health plans. A group health plan shall ensure that any annual cost-sharing imposed
260 under the plan does not exceed the limitations provided for under paragraphs (1) and (2) of section 1302(c) of the Patient
261 Protection and Affordable Care Act and State law.

262 (c) Child-only plans. If a health insurer offers health insurance coverage in any level of coverage specified under
263 section 1302(d) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act or State law, the health insurer shall also offer such
264 coverage in that level as a plan in which the only enrollees are individuals who, as of the beginning of the plan year, have
265 not attained the age of 21.

266 (d) Dental only. This section shall not apply to a plan described in section 1302(d)(2)(B)(ii)(I) of the Patient
267 Protection and Affordable Care Act.

268 § 3571M. Prohibiting discrimination against individual participants and beneficiaries based on health status.

269 (a) In General. A group health plan and a health insurer offering group health insurance coverage may not
270 establish rules for eligibility (including continued eligibility) of any individual to enroll under the terms of the plan or
271 coverage based on any of the following health status-related factors in relation to the individual or a dependent of the
272 individual:

273 (1) Health status.

274 (2) Medical condition (including both physical and mental illnesses).

275 (3) Claims experience.

276 (4) Receipt of health care.

277 (5) Medical history.

278 (6) Genetic information.

279 (7) Evidence of insurability (including conditions arising out of acts of domestic violence).

280 (8) Disability.

281 (9) Any other health status-related factor determined appropriate by the Commissioner.

282 (b) Programs of health promotion or disease prevention.

283 (1) General Provisions.

284 (A) General rule. For purposes of subsection (b)(2)(B), a program of health promotion or
285 disease prevention (referred to in this subsection as a “wellness program”) shall be a program offered by an employer that is
286 designed to promote health or prevent disease that meets the applicable requirements of this subsection.

287 (B) No conditions based on health status factor. If none of the conditions for obtaining a
288 premium discount or rebate or other reward for participation in a wellness program is based on an individual satisfying a

289 standard that is related to a health status factor, such wellness program shall not violate this section if participation in the
290 program is made available to all similarly situated individuals and the requirements of paragraph (2) are complied with.

291 (C) Conditions based on health status factor. If any of the conditions for obtaining a premium
292 discount or rebate or other reward for participation in a wellness program is based on an individual satisfying a standard
293 that is related to a health status factor, such wellness program shall not violate this section if the requirements of paragraph
294 (3) are complied with.

295 (2) Wellness programs not subject to requirements. If none of the conditions for obtaining a premium
296 discount or rebate or other reward under a wellness program as described in paragraph (1)(B) are based on an individual
297 satisfying a standard that is related to a health status factor (or if such a wellness program does not provide such a reward),
298 the wellness program shall not violate this section if participation in the program is made available to all similarly situated
299 individuals. The following programs shall not have to comply with the requirements of paragraph (3) if participation in the
300 program is made available to all similarly situated individuals:

301 (A) A program that reimburses all or part of the cost for membership in a fitness center.

302 (B) A diagnostic testing program that provides a reward for participation and does not base any
303 part of the reward on outcomes.

304 (C) A program that encourages preventive care related to a health condition through the waiver
305 of the copayment or deductible requirement under a group health plan for the costs of certain items or services related to a
306 health condition (such as prenatal care or well-baby visits).

307 (D) A program that reimburses individuals for the costs of smoking cessation programs without
308 regard to whether the individual quits smoking.

309 (E) A program that provides a reward to individuals for attending a periodic health education
310 seminar.

311 (3) Wellness programs subject to requirements. If any of the conditions for obtaining a premium
312 discount, rebate or reward under a wellness program as described in paragraph (1)(C) is based on an individual satisfying a
313 standard that is related to a health status factor, the wellness program shall not violate this section if the following
314 requirements are complied with:

315 (A) The reward for the wellness program, together with the reward for other wellness programs
316 with respect to the plan that requires satisfaction of a standard related to a health status factor, shall not exceed 30 percent
317 of the cost of employee-only coverage under the plan. If, in addition to employees or individuals, any class of dependents
318 (such as spouses or spouses and dependent children) may participate fully in the wellness program, such reward shall not

319 exceed 30 percent of the cost of the coverage in which an employee or individual and any dependents are enrolled. For
320 purposes of this paragraph, the cost of coverage shall be determined based on the total amount of employer and employee
321 contributions for the benefit package under which the employee is (or the employee and dependents are) receiving
322 coverage. A reward may be in the form of a discount or rebate of a premium or contribution, a waiver of all or part of a
323 cost-sharing mechanism (such as deductibles, copayments, or coinsurance), the absence of a surcharge, or the value of a
324 benefit that would otherwise not be provided under the plan. The Commissioner may increase the reward available under
325 this subparagraph to up to 50 percent of the cost of coverage if the Commissioner determines that such an increase is
326 appropriate.

327 (B) The wellness program shall be reasonably designed to promote health or prevent disease. A
328 program complies with the preceding sentence if the program has a reasonable chance of improving the health of, or
329 preventing disease in, participating individuals and it is not overly burdensome, is not a subterfuge for discriminating based
330 on a health status factor, and is not highly suspect in the method chosen to promote health or prevent disease.

331 (C) The plan shall give individuals eligible for the program the opportunity to qualify for the
332 reward under the program at least once each year.

333 (D) The full reward under the wellness program shall be made available to all similarly situated
334 individuals. For such purpose, among other things:

335 (i) The reward is not available to all similarly situated individuals for a period unless
336 the wellness program allows –

337 (I) for a reasonable alternative standard (or waiver of the otherwise applicable
338 standard) for obtaining the reward for any individual for whom, for that period, it is unreasonably difficult due to a medical
339 condition to satisfy the otherwise applicable standard; and

340 (II) for a reasonable alternative standard (or waiver of the otherwise
341 applicable standard) for obtaining the reward for any individual for whom, for that period, it is medically inadvisable to
342 attempt to satisfy the otherwise applicable standard.

343 (ii) If reasonable under the circumstances, the plan or health insurer may seek
344 verification, such as a statement from an individual's physician, that a health status factor makes it unreasonably difficult or
345 medically inadvisable for the individual to satisfy or attempt to satisfy the otherwise applicable standard.

346 (E) The plan or health insurer involved shall disclose in all plan materials describing the terms
347 of the wellness program the availability of a reasonable alternative standard (or the possibility of waiver of the otherwise

348 applicable standard) required under subparagraph (D). If plan materials disclose that such a program is available, without
349 describing its terms, the disclosure under this subparagraph shall not be required.

350 (4) Nothing in this section shall prohibit a program of health promotion or disease prevention that was
351 established prior to the date of enactment of this section and applied with all applicable regulations, and that is operating on
352 such date, from continuing to be carried out for as long as such regulations remain in effect.

353 § 3571N. Insurance offered through the State health insurance exchange.

354 (a) A health insurer that offers health insurance coverage in the small group market through the State health
355 insurance exchange program established pursuant to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act shall first satisfy all
356 certification standards required by Federal and State law, and the health insurer shall offer only those plans that are
357 “qualified health plans” as required by Federal and State law.

358 (b) The Commissioner shall adopt regulations, in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, that set
359 forth the certification and compliance standards and requirements for health insurers operating within the State health
360 exchange.

361 § 3571O. Rating Factors. In establishing rates for health insurance coverage offered in the group market, health
362 insurers shall comply with the rating requirements established under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and 45
363 CFR §147.102. The Commissioner shall adopt regulations, in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, that are
364 consistent with Chapter 25 of this Title and set forth more specifically the rating standards and requirements for health
365 insurers operating within this State.

366 Section 9. Amend Section 3573, Title 18, of the Delaware Code, by making insertions as shown by underlining
367 and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

368 § 3573. Limitations on preexisting condition limitations.

369 A health benefit plan that covers a large group in this State:

370 (1) Shall not deny, exclude or limit benefits for a covered individual because of a preexisting condition ~~for losses~~
371 incurred more than 12 months following the date of enrollment of the individual in such plan or, if earlier, the first day of
372 the waiting period for such enrollment;

373 (2) ~~May impose a preexisting exclusion only if such exclusion relates to a condition (whether physical or mental),~~
374 ~~regardless of the cause of the condition for which medical advice, diagnosis, care or treatment was recommended or~~
375 ~~received within 6 months immediately preceding the effective date of coverage;~~

376 (3) ~~Shall not impose any preexisting condition exclusion relating to pregnancy or in the case of a child who is~~
377 ~~adopted or placed for adoption before attaining 18 years of age and who, as of the last day of the 30-day period beginning~~

378 on the date of the adoption or placement for adoption, is covered under creditable coverage. This paragraph shall not apply
379 to coverage before the date of such adoption or placement for adoption;

380 (4) ~~May impose an affiliation period, if it does not utilize preexisting condition limitations.~~ An affiliation period
381 shall run concurrently with any waiting period. A health maintenance organization may, in lieu of an affiliation period, use
382 an alternative method to address adverse selection with the prior approval of the Commissioner;

383 (5) ~~(3)~~ Shall waive an affiliation period ~~or time period applicable to a preexisting condition exclusion or~~
384 ~~limitation~~ for the period of time an individual was previously covered by creditable coverage if such creditable coverage
385 was continuous to a date not more than 63 days prior to the effective date of the new coverage. For purposes of calculating
386 continuous coverage, a waiting period shall not be considered a gap in coverage. This paragraph shall not preclude
387 application of any waiting period applicable to all new enrollees under the plan. The method of crediting and certifying
388 coverage shall be determined by the Commissioner by regulation; and

389 (6) ~~(4)~~ May not exclude coverage for late enrollees for a preexisting condition. ~~late enrollees for no more than an~~
390 ~~18-month preexisting condition exclusion; except that, if both a waiting period and a preexisting condition exclusion are~~
391 ~~applicable to a late enrollee, the combined period shall not exceed 18 months from the date the individual enrolls for~~
392 ~~coverage under the health benefit plan. Health maintenance organizations that do not use preexisting condition exclusion~~
393 ~~periods in any of their plans may impose up to a 3-month affiliation period in lieu of the 18-month preexisting condition~~
394 ~~period.~~

395 Section 10. Amend Section 3602(6), Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by
396 underlining and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

397 §3602. Definitions.

398 (6) "Dependent" means a spouse, an enrollee's child by blood or law who is less than 26 years of age ~~an~~
399 ~~unmarried child under the age of 18 years, an unmarried child who is a full-time student under the age of 25 years and who~~
400 ~~is financially dependent upon the enrollee~~ and an unmarried child of any age who is medically certified as totally disabled
401 and dependent upon the enrollee.

402 Section 11. Amend Section 3606, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining
403 and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

404 (a) Notwithstanding § 3306 of this title, if an insurer or health service corporation elects to use a simplified
405 application form, with or without a question as to the applicant's health at the time of the application, but without any
406 questions concerning the ~~insurer's~~ insured's health history or medical treatment history, the policy must cover any loss
407 ~~occurring after 12 months~~ from any preexisting condition ~~not specifically excluded from coverage by terms of the policy,~~

408 and, ~~except as so provided~~, the policy or contract shall not include wording that would permit a defense based upon
409 preexisting conditions.

410 (b) Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section and § 3306 of this title, an insurer or a health service
411 corporation which issues a specified disease policy, regardless of whether such policy is issued on the basis of a detailed
412 application form, a simplified application for or an enrollment form, may not deny a claim for any covered loss that begins
413 after the policy has been in force ~~for at least 6 months, unless such loss results from a preexisting condition which first~~
414 ~~manifests itself within 6 months prior to the effective date of the policy or contract or was diagnosed by a physician at any~~
415 ~~time prior to such date.~~ Except for rescission for misrepresentation, no other defenses based upon preexisting conditions
416 are permitted.

417 Section 12. Amend Chapter 36, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining and
418 deletions as shown by strikethrough as follows:

419 ~~§ 3607. Limited guaranteed issue.~~

420 ~~(a) Every carrier offering individual health plans in Delaware shall offer and accept for enrollment, pursuant to~~
421 ~~subsection (b) of this section, every federally eligible individual who applies for coverage within 63 days after termination~~
422 ~~of such individual's prior coverage, except that this requirement shall not apply to carriers offering coverage only through~~
423 ~~bona fide associations or to carriers offering individual coverage only through conversion policies.~~

424 ~~(b) A carrier shall meet the requirements of subsection (a) of this section if:~~

425 ~~(1) The carrier offers at least 2 different health benefit policy forms, both of which are designed for, are~~
426 ~~made generally available and actively marketed to and enroll both federally eligible and other individuals; and~~

427 ~~(2) The offering of policy forms includes, at a minimum:~~

428 ~~a. The policy forms for health benefit plan coverage with the largest and next to largest premium~~
429 ~~volume of all such policy forms offered by the carrier in Delaware; or~~

430 ~~b. A lower-level coverage policy form and higher-level policy form which include benefits~~
431 ~~substantially similar to other individual health insurance coverage offered by the carrier in Delaware and are covered under~~
432 ~~a risk adjustment, risk spreading or financial subsidization method. As used in this subparagraph:~~

433 ~~1. "Higher-level coverage" means a policy form for which the actuarial value of the~~
434 ~~benefits under the coverage is at least 15 percent greater than the actuarial value of lower-level coverage offered by the~~
435 ~~carrier in Delaware and the actuarial value of the benefits under the coverage is at least 100 percent but not greater than 120~~
436 ~~percent of the policy form weighted average.~~

437 2. ~~“Lower level coverage” means a policy form for which the actuarial value of the~~
438 ~~benefits under the coverage is at least 85 percent but not greater than 100 percent of the policy form weighted average.~~

439 3. ~~“Policy form weighted average” means the average actuarial value of the benefits~~
440 ~~provided by all the health insurance coverage issued (as elected by the carrier) either by that carrier or, if such data are~~
441 ~~available, by all carriers in Delaware in the individual health benefit plan market during the previous year (not including~~
442 ~~coverage issued under this section) weighted by enrollment for the different coverage.~~

443 e. ~~Preexisting condition limitations shall not be applied to federally eligible individuals for~~
444 ~~coverage provided pursuant to this section.~~

445 (e) ~~With respect to the provisions of subsection (b) of this section, a carrier that offers coverage in the individual~~
446 ~~market through a network plan may limit the individuals who may be enrolled to those that live, reside or work within the~~
447 ~~service area of the plan. Such a carrier may deny coverage to eligible individuals if it demonstrates to the Commissioner~~
448 ~~that it will not have the capacity to deliver services adequately to additional enrollees and it is applying this subsection~~
449 ~~uniformly to individuals without regard to any health status related factor of such individuals and without regard to whether~~
450 ~~the individuals are eligible individuals.~~

451 (d) ~~A carrier may apply to the Commissioner to suspend, for a period of time, its duty to issue coverage pursuant~~
452 ~~to subsection (b) of this section where continued compliance would adversely affect the financial condition of the company.~~
453 ~~Where such a suspension is granted, the carrier may not offer coverage in the individual market for a period of at least 180~~
454 ~~days after the suspension is granted.~~

455 (e) ~~For the purposes of this section, the term “health benefit plan” as defined in §3602(10) of this title does not~~
456 ~~include nonrenewable short term individual health benefit plans with a duration of 6 months or less.~~

457 § 3607. Guaranteed availability of coverage.

458 (a) Guaranteed availability of coverage in the individual market. Subject to paragraphs (b) through
459 (d) of this section, a carrier that offers health insurance coverage in the individual market in this State must
460 offer to any individual in this State all products that are approved for sale in the individual market, and must
461 accept any individual that applies for any of those products.

462 (b) Enrollment periods. A carrier may restrict enrollment in health insurance coverage to open or
463 special enrollment periods.

464 (1) Open enrollment periods in the individual market. A carrier in the individual market must permit an
465 individual to purchase health insurance coverage during the initial and annual open enrollment periods described in 45 CFR

466 §155.410(b) and (e), with such coverage becoming effective consistent with the dates described in 45 CFR §155.410(c) and
467 (f).

468 (2) Special enrollment periods. A carrier in the individual market shall establish special enrollment periods
469 for qualifying events as defined under section 603 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
470 Enrollees shall be provided 30 calendar days after the date of the qualifying event to elect coverage, with such coverage
471 becoming effective consistent with the dates described in 45 CFR §155.420(b). These special enrollment periods are in
472 addition to any other special enrollment periods that are required under federal and state law.

473 (c) Special rules for network plans. (1) In the case of a carrier that offers health insurance coverage in the
474 individual market through a network plan, the carrier may do the following:

475 (i) Limit the individuals who may apply for the coverage in the individual market to those who live or reside
476 in the service area for the network plan.

477 (ii) Within the service area of the plan, deny coverage to individuals if the carrier has demonstrated to the
478 Commissioner the following:

479 (A) It will not have the capacity to deliver services adequately to enrollees of any additional individuals
480 because of its obligations to existing contract holders and enrollees.

481 (B) It is applying paragraph (c)(1) of this section uniformly to all individuals without regard to the claims
482 experience of those individuals (and their dependents) or any health-status related factor relating to such individuals and
483 dependents.

484 (2) A carrier that denies health insurance coverage to an individual in any service area, in accordance with
485 paragraph (c)(1)(ii) of this section, may not offer coverage in the individual market within the service area to any individual
486 for a period of 180 calendar days after the date the coverage is denied. This paragraph (c)(2) does not limit the carrier's
487 ability to renew coverage already in force or relieve the carrier of the responsibility to renew that coverage.

488 (3) Coverage offered within a service area after the 180-day period specified in paragraph (c)(2) of this section is
489 subject to the requirements of this section.

490 (d) Application of financial capacity limits. (1) A carrier may deny health insurance coverage in the individual
491 market if the carrier has demonstrated to the Commissioner the following:

492 (i) It does not have the financial reserves necessary to underwrite additional coverage.

493 (ii) It is applying this paragraph (d)(1) uniformly to all individuals in the individual market in this State
494 consistent with applicable State law and without regard to the claims experience of those individuals (and their dependents)
495 or any health status-related factor relating to such individuals and dependents.

496 (2) A carrier that denies health insurance coverage to any individual in this State under paragraph (d)(1) of this
497 section may not offer coverage in the individual market in this State before the later of either of the following dates:

498 (i) The 181st day after the date the carrier denies coverage

499 (ii) The date the carrier demonstrates to the Commissioner that the carrier has sufficient reserves to underwrite
500 additional coverage.

501 (3) Paragraph (d)(2) of this section does not limit the carrier's ability to renew coverage already in force or relieve
502 the carrier of the responsibility to renew that coverage.

503 (4) Coverage offered after the 180-day period specified in paragraph (d)(2) of this section is subject to the
504 requirements of this section.

505 (5) The Commissioner may provide for the application of this paragraph (d) on service-area-specific basis.

506 (e) Marketing. A carrier and its officials, employees, agents and representatives must comply with any applicable
507 State laws and regulations regarding marketing by carriers and cannot employ marketing practices or benefit designs that
508 will have the effect of discouraging the enrollment of individuals with significant health needs in health insurance coverage.

509 (f) Grandfathered health plans. This section does not apply to grandfathered health plans. For purposes of this
510 section, "grandfathered health plans" means plans provided by a health insurer in which an individual was enrolled on
511 March 23, 2010, for as long as it maintains that status in accordance with federal regulations.

512 Section 13. Amend Chapter 36, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by underlining as
513 follows:

514 § 3609. Non-discrimination in health care.

515 (a) Providers. A health insurer offering individual health insurance coverage shall not discriminate with respect to
516 participation under the coverage against any health care provider who is acting within the scope of that provider's license or
517 certification under applicable State law. This section shall not require that a health insurer contract with any health care
518 provider willing to abide by the terms and conditions for participation established by the insurer. Nothing in this section
519 shall be construed as preventing a health insurer or the Commissioner from establishing varying reimbursement rates based
520 on quality or performance measures.

521 (b) Individuals. The provisions of section 1558 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (relating to
522 non-discrimination) shall apply with respect to a health insurer offering individual health insurance coverage.

523 § 3610. Comprehensive health insurance coverage.

524 (a) Coverage for essential health benefits package. A health insurer that offers health insurance coverage in the
525 individual market shall ensure that such coverage includes the essential health benefits package in conformity with Section

526 1302 of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and State law. The Commissioner shall issue a regulation setting
527 forth what constitutes “essential health benefits” for purposes of this section.

528 (b) Cost-sharing under individual health insurance policies. An individual health insurance policy shall ensure
529 that any annual cost-sharing imposed under the plan does not exceed the limitations provided for under paragraph (1) of
530 section 1302(c) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and State law.

531 (c) Child-only plans. If a health insurer offers health insurance coverage in any level of coverage specified under
532 section 1302(d) of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act or State law, the health insurer shall also offer such
533 coverage in that level as a plan in which the only enrollees are individuals who, as of the beginning of the plan year, have
534 not attained the age of 21.

535 (d) Dental only. This section shall not apply to a plan described in section 1302(d)(2)(B)(ii)(I) of the Patient
536 Protection and Affordable Care Act.

537 § 3611. Prohibiting discrimination against individual participants and beneficiaries based on health status.

538 (a) In General. A health insurer offering individual health insurance coverage may not establish rules for
539 eligibility (including continued eligibility) of any individual to enroll under the terms of the coverage based on any of the
540 following health status-related factors in relation to the individual or a dependent of the individual:

541 (1) Health status.

542 (2) Medical condition (including both physical and mental illnesses).

543 (3) Claims experience.

544 (4) Receipt of health care.

545 (5) Medical history.

546 (6) Genetic information.

547 (7) Evidence of insurability (including conditions arising out of acts of domestic violence).

548 (8) Disability.

549 (9) Any other health status-related factor determined appropriate by the Commissioner.

550 § 3612. Insurance offered through the State health insurance exchange,

551 (a) A health insurer that offers health insurance coverage in the individual market through the State health
552 insurance exchange program established pursuant to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act shall first satisfy all
553 certification standards required by Federal and State law, and the health insurer shall offer only those policies that are
554 “qualified health plans” as required by Federal and State law.

555 (b) The Commissioner shall adopt regulations, in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, that set
556 forth the certification and compliance standards and requirements for health insurers operating within the State health
557 exchange.

558 § 3613. Rating Factors. In establishing rates for health insurance coverage offered in the individual market, health
559 insurers shall comply with the rating requirements established under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and 45
560 CFR §147.102. The Commissioner shall adopt regulations, in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, that are
561 consistent with Chapter 25 of this Title and set forth more specifically the rating standards and requirements for health
562 insurers operating within this State.

563 Section 14. Amend subparagraphs (15), (16) and (34) of Section 7202, Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making
564 insertions as shown by underlining and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

565 §7202. Definitions.

566 (15) “Dependent” means a spouse, ~~an unmarried child under the age of 18 years, an unmarried child who is a full-~~
567 ~~time student under the age of 25 years and who is financially dependent upon the parent~~ a child under the age of 26 years,
568 and an unmarried child of any age who is medically certified as totally disabled and dependent upon the parent.

569 (16) “Eligible employee” means an employee who works on a full-time basis and has a normal work week of 30
570 or more hours. The term includes ~~a sole proprietor,~~ a partner of a partnership and an independent contractor, if the ~~sole~~
571 ~~proprietor,~~ partner or independent contractor is included as an employee under a health benefit plan of a small employer,
572 but does not include a sole proprietor, a family member of a sole proprietor, or an employee who works on a part-time,
573 temporary or substitute basis.

574 (34) “Small employer” means any person, firm, corporation, partnership or association that is actively engaged in
575 business that, on at least 50 percent of its working days during the preceding calendar quarter, employed no more than 50
576 eligible employees, the majority of whom were employed within this State. In determining the number of eligible
577 employees, companies that are affiliated companies, or that are eligible to file a combined tax return for purposes of state
578 taxation, shall be considered 1 employer. For the avoidance of doubt, a sole proprietorship that employs only the sole
579 proprietor and/or such sole proprietor’s family members shall not be considered a small employer for purposes of this
580 Chapter.

581 Section 15. Amend Section 7207(c), Title 18, of the Delaware Code by making insertions as shown by
582 underlining and deletions as shown by strike through as follows:

583 § 7207. Availability of coverage; preexisting conditions; minimum participation

584 (c) Health benefit plans covering small employers shall comply with the following provisions:

585 (1) A health benefit plan shall not deny, exclude or limit benefits for a covered individual for losses due
586 to a preexisting condition. ~~where such were incurred more than 12 months following the date of enrollment in such plan or,~~
587 ~~if earlier, the first day of the waiting period for such enrollment. A health benefit plan shall not define a preexisting~~
588 ~~condition more restrictively than a condition (whether physical or mental), regardless of the cause of the condition for~~
589 ~~which medical advice, diagnosis, care, or treatment was recommended or received within 6 months immediately preceding~~
590 ~~the effective date of coverage.~~

591 (2)a. ~~A health benefit plan shall not impose any preexisting condition exclusion relating to pregnancy or~~
592 ~~in the case of a child who is adopted or placed for adoption before attaining 18 years of age and who, as of the last day of~~
593 ~~the 30-day period beginning on the date of the adoption or placement for adoption, is covered under creditable coverage.~~
594 This subparagraph shall not apply to coverage before the date of such adoption or placement for adoption.

595 b. ~~If a health maintenance organization does not utilize preexisting condition limitations in any health~~
596 ~~benefit plan, it may impose an affiliation period. An affiliation period shall run concurrently with any waiting period~~
597 ~~imposed. Such a health maintenance organization may, in lieu of an affiliation period, use an alternative method to address~~
598 ~~adverse selection with the prior approval of the Insurance Commissioner.~~

599 (3) A health benefit plan shall waive any affiliation period ~~time period applicable to a preexisting~~
600 ~~condition exclusion or limitation period~~ with respect to particular services for the period of time an individual was
601 previously covered by qualifying previous coverage that provided benefits with respect to such services provided, that the
602 qualifying previous coverage was continuous to a date not more than 63 days prior to the effective date of the new
603 coverage, excluding any waiting period applicable to the new plan. This paragraph does not preclude application of any
604 waiting period applicable to all new enrollees under the health benefit plan.

605 (4) A health benefit plan may not either exclude coverage for late enrollees for a preexisting condition. ~~18~~
606 ~~months or contain an 18-month preexisting condition exclusion; provided, that if both a period of exclusion from coverage~~
607 ~~and a preexisting condition exclusion are applicable to a late enrollee, the combined period shall not exceed 18 months~~
608 ~~from the date the individual became eligible to enroll for coverage under the health benefit plan, except as provided in~~
609 ~~paragraph (1) of this subsection.~~

610 (5)a. Except as provided in subsection (d) of this section, requirements used by a small employer carrier
611 in determining whether to provide coverage to a small employer, including requirements for minimum participation of

612 eligible employees, shall be applied uniformly among all small employers with the same number of eligible employees
613 applying for coverage or receiving coverage from the small employer carrier.

614 b. A small employer carrier may vary the application of minimum participation requirements and
615 minimum employer contribution requirements only by the size of the small employer group.

616 c. An employee who does not participate in the health benefit plan and who presents satisfactory evidence
617 that the employee has coverage through a spouse or other qualifying existing coverage shall not be counted by a small
618 employer carrier with respect to number or percent participation requirements.

619 d. A small employer carrier shall not increase any requirement for minimum employee participation or
620 any requirement for minimum employer contribution applicable to a small employer at any time after the small employer
621 has contracted for coverage.

622 (6)a. If a small employer carrier offers coverage to a small employer, the small employer carrier shall offer
623 coverage to all of the eligible employees of a small employer and their dependents. A small employer carrier shall not offer
624 coverage to only certain individuals in a small employer group or to only part of the group, except in the case of late
625 enrollees as provided in paragraph (4) of this subsection.

626 b. A small employer carrier shall not modify a basic or standard health benefit plan with respect to a small
627 employer or any eligible employee or dependent through riders, endorsements or otherwise, to restrict or exclude coverage
628 for certain diseases or medical conditions otherwise covered by the health benefit plan.

629 Section 16. Amend Section 2 of Chapter 246, Volume 78, of the Delaware Laws by making deletions as
630 shown by strike through as follows:

631 “Section 2. This Act shall take effect within 30 days of its enactment ~~and shall expire on January 1, 2014.~~”

632 Section 19. Effective Date. This law shall apply to all individual and group health insurance contracts, as
633 applicable, issued or renewed on or after January 1, 2014. For the avoidance of doubt, this Act shall not apply to accident-
634 only, dental only, vision care only, specified diseases, long term care, hospital, indemnity, disability income or other fixed
635 indemnity policies.

SYNOPSIS

This bill is designed to bring the health insurance provisions of the Delaware Insurance Code in compliance with the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (“PPACA”).

Sections 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 10, and 14 (in part) of this bill amend the Delaware Insurance Code to reflect the requirement that dependents be covered up until the age of 26.

Sections 5, 9, 11, and 15 of this bill amend the Delaware Insurance Code to reflect the requirement that coverage not be denied due to preexisting conditions.

Section 4 of this bill adds a new provision to the Delaware Insurance Code for individual health insurance policies that (i) prohibits insurance companies from imposing lifetime and annual limits on essential health benefits for policies that have policy years beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and (ii) for policies that have policy years beginning prior to January 1, 2014, sets the minimum limits insurance companies may impose for essential health benefits.

Section 8 of this bill adds several new provisions to Chapter 35 of the Delaware Insurance Code (relating to group and blanket health insurance policies), specifically including provisions that: (i)(A) prohibit insurance companies from imposing lifetime and annual limits on essential health benefits for policies that have policy years beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and (B) for policies that have policy years beginning prior to January 1, 2014, set the minimum limits insurance companies may impose for essential health benefits; (ii) require guaranteed availability of coverage and set forth the enrollment period and network plan requirements; (iii) prohibit excessive waiting periods; (iv) prohibit discrimination against health care providers; (v) require health insurance companies to ensure that (A) plans offered cover all essential health benefits, (B) annual cost-sharing provisions do not exceed the limitations imposed by PPACA and (C) the health insurance companies offer child-only plans; (vi) prohibit discrimination against participants and beneficiaries based on health status and provide the requirements for health promotion and disease prevention programs; and (vii) discuss the certification requirements for participation in the State health exchange program.

Section 12 of this bill deletes the current provision in the Delaware Insurance Code regarding limited guarantee issue of insurance policies and adds a new provision relating to individual health insurance policies that requires guaranteed availability of coverage and sets forth the enrollment period and network plan requirements.

Section 13 of this bill adds several new provisions to Chapter 36 of the Delaware Insurance Code (relating to individual health insurance policies), specifically including provisions that: (i) prohibit excessive waiting periods; (ii) prohibit discrimination against health care providers; (iii) require health insurance companies to ensure that (A) coverage offered covers all essential health benefits, (B) annual cost-sharing provisions do not exceed the limitations imposed by PPACA and (C) the health insurance companies offer child-only plans; (iv) prohibit discrimination against participants and beneficiaries based on health status; and (v) discuss the certification requirements for participation in the State health exchange program.

The remaining amendments set forth in Section 14 of this bill (relating to Section 7202(16) and (34)) amend the definitions of “eligible employee” and “small employer” to conform to the federal definition, which dictates that sole proprietors and their family members are not “eligible employees” for purposes of acquiring a small group insurance policy.

Section 16 of this bill relates to the Mini-COBRA small employer group health policies provision, 28 Del. Laws, c. 246 (the “Mini-COBRA Bill”). The Mini-COBRA Bill was originally passed as a short-term bill that was needed until the provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (“PPACA”) became applicable to states, which was to occur on January 1, 2014. However, because PPACA’s legislation relating to small employer group health policies now permits insurance companies to impose a ninety (90) day waiting period prior to the effective date of coverage, which was not anticipated when the Mini-COBRA Bill was passed, it is desirable to remove the sunset provision of the Mini-COBRA Bill so that the Mini-COBRA Bill remains in the Delaware Code, at least until a point in time when PPACA or other law may no longer permit an insurance company to impose waiting periods.